

are appropriated as of June 30, 1962, and June 30, 1963. The provisions of this section shall not apply to aid contributions, or reimbursements received from the federal government by the state; and all such federal aid contributions, or reimbursements are hereby reappropriated for the purpose of supplementing the appropriations herein provided.

Sec. 12. None of the moneys appropriated by this act or any other law shall be expended in making any refund where the amount thereof is \$1.00 or less.

Approved June 7, 1961.

EXTRA SESSION

CHAPTER 74—S. F. No. 10

[Coded in Part]

An act relating to the operation of the state government; appropriating moneys therefor, permitting transfers in certain cases and limiting the use thereof, including appropriations for the departments of public welfare and corrections, public assistance programs, old age assistance, aid to dependent children, aid to the blind, aid to the disabled, and public relief, and for other related purposes.

Be it enacted by the Legislature of the State of Minnesota:

Section 1. **Departments of public welfare and corrections to expend moneys.** The sums hereinafter named, or so much thereof as may be necessary, are hereby appropriated from the general revenue fund in the state treasury not otherwise appropriated, or any other fund herein designated, to be expended for the purposes specified in the following sections of this act, to be available for the fiscal years ending June 30, 1961, June 30, 1962 and June 30, 1963.

	APPROPRIATIONS	
	Available for the Year	
	Ending June 30	1963
	1962	
	\$	\$
Sec. 2. TO THE COMMISSIONER OF WELFARE		
Subd. 1. Administration of the Department of Public Welfare	1,079,820	1,067,683

Changes or additions indicated by *italics*, deletions by ~~strikeout~~.

Approved Complement—248.35

The amounts above to provide services for the deaf and hard of hearing, and provided further that three social workers shall be assigned to the Section of Mentally Deficient and Epileptics.

Provided that the institutions of the department of corrections shall receive supervision and guidance from the farm supervisor employed by the department of welfare.

Subd. 2. Mental Health Research 200,000

Any unexpended balance remaining in the first year shall not cancel but shall be available for the second year of the biennium.

The above amount includes moneys for the continuation of Mental Health Research at the State Prison.

Subd. 3. Mental Health Training Program 100,000 100,000

Of the amount appropriated by Subd. 3 \$30,000 each year may be used for the employment of additional psychiatrists at state institutions and only such funds as are necessary shall be transferred to those institutions where the psychiatrists are employed.

Subd. 4. Mental Health Out-Patient Clinics 650,000 750,000

Approved Complement—4

Provided that of the above amounts \$28,000 for the year ending June 30, 1962 and \$32,000 for the year ending June 30, 1963 shall be for the North St. Louis County Clinic.

Subd. 5. Working Capital Fund for Hospital Care 20,000

The amount appropriated by

Changes or additions indicated by *italics*, deletions by ~~strikeout~~.

this item shall be used to cover the expense of hospital care for patients and inmates furnished in hospitals not under supervision of the Commissioner of Public Welfare. The balance shall not cancel on June 30, 1962, but shall be available for the following year. All reimbursements received for such medical services shall be credited to this fund and become a part thereof.

Subd. 6.	Care and support of children Under Guardianship of the Commissioner of Public Welfare	600,000	650,000
Subd. 7.	Care of Dependent and Neglected Children—Children's Center		
a.	Current Expense	14,890	14,890
b.	Salaries	73,395	75,540
	Approved Complement—13.5		
Subd. 8.	Care, Relief and Support of Dependent Children	5,970,000	6,650,000
Subd. 9.	County Sanatoria Care	500,000	500,000
Subd. 10.	Care, Relief and Support of the Aged	11,500,000	12,800,000
	Not to exceed \$5,000 each year of the appropriation provided for in this section may be used as reimbursement to any county as its share of old age assistance granted to persons who were formerly cared for by the Homeless Men's Camp at Savage, Minnesota, and whose county of settlement cannot be determined provided that such old age assistance was paid at the request of the state agency.		
Subd. 11.	Administrative Expense on Aging	23,000	23,000
Subd. 12.	Care, Relief and Support of the Blind	400,000	475,000
Subd. 13.	Vocational Rehabilitation of the Blind	60,000	60,000
	The sum of \$2,500 each year		

Changes or additions indicated by *italics*, deletions by ~~strikeout~~.

out of the amount above appropriated shall be paid into the revolving fund established by Chapter 535, Laws of 1947, for the purchase of equipment and supplies for establishing and operating of vending stands by blind persons. All income, receipts, earnings and federal grants due to the operation thereof shall also be paid into said fund, and all equipment, supplies and expenses for the setting up of such stands to be so operated, shall be paid from said fund.

Subd. 14.	Care, Relief and Support of the Disabled	328,000	358,000
Subd. 15.	Equalize the Cost of Welfare	1,150,000	1,250,000

All payments from funds appropriated by this section shall be based upon a formula which will provide:

a. Where the required total mill levy in any county with an assessed valuation for real and personal property, less than \$13,000,000 for all costs of welfare, as defined in subsection b. hereof, exceeds the average required mill levy for welfare purposes in all counties of the state by 50 percent or more but is insufficient to pay the county's share of the cost thereof, the state may bear 75 percent of the costs of welfare in that county which is in excess of the amount which would be produced by a levy in that county of one and one-half times the average required state mill levy for such purpose.

b. For the purposes of this act, welfare costs shall be deemed to include all forms of public assistance and the administrative costs thereof, to wit; old age assistance, aid to dependent children, aid to the permanently and totally disabled, aid to the blind, payments to the Commissioner of

Changes or additions indicated by *italics*, deletions by ~~strikeout~~.

Public Welfare for care and treatment of patients in state institutions, maintenance relief, medical relief, hospital charges, maintenance of children not under state guardianship, cost of sundry poor, and all administrative costs except University Hospitals care, tuberculosis sanatoria care, care of children under state guardianships and poor burials.

c. No county shall be entitled to the benefits of this act if it has transferred any moneys available for welfare purposes to any other county funds, except that a transfer of a surplus in the welfare fund may be made to the road and bridge fund of said county, and except that where funds are otherwise unavailable a transfer may also be made to the general revenue fund of said county for payment of rent for office space for the county welfare board. Such transfers shall be made only with the approval of the governor after consultation with the Minnesota Public Relief Advisory Committee. Provided further that such transfer of funds for payment for rent shall not be considered an expenditure for equalization aid reimbursement.

d. The Commissioner of Public Welfare may advance such grants on an estimated basis subject to audit and adjustment at the end of each year.

Subd. 16. Relief Purposes as Described in Laws, 1941 Chapter 525, Section 10	500,000	500,000
---	---------	---------

The expenditure of moneys appropriated under this section shall be subject to all the limitations and conditions imposed by Laws 1941, Chapter 525, upon the expenditures of the moneys therein appropriated, and all such limitations and conditions are hereby extended and

Changes or additions indicated by *italics*, deletions by ~~strikeout~~.

reenacted. The Minnesota Public Relief Advisory Committee is hereby continued for the purposes of this section, and all provisions of Laws 1941, Chapter 525, relating thereto are hereby extended and reenacted.

1961

Subd. 17. To Becker County

130,541

To reimburse Becker County for the support of dependent and neglected children and indigent persons of Indian blood from July 1, 1958 to November 30, 1960 to be paid by state warrant forthwith upon the final enactment of this act.

Subd. 18. Anoka State Hospital

a. Current Expense	526,832	520,543
b. Salaries	2,030,397	2,114,176

Approved Complement—

1962-410.83

1963-424.83

Provided that the approved complement for fiscal 1963 shall remain at 410.83 until the addition to the Miller Building for a Security Unit for Women is completed. After the addition is completed, the approved complement shall be increased to 424.83. The moneys appropriated in 1963 for the 14 additional positions shall not be used for any other purpose than staffing the Security Unit addition, and if not so used, shall be cancelled into the general revenue fund.

c. Repairs and Replacements	28,000	28,000
d. Pathological Laboratory....	12,860	13,049
e. Special Equipment	25,850	

Of the amounts appropriated by Subd. 18 e., so much thereof as may be necessary shall be used for the purchase of automotive equipment, laundry, maintenance, and medical equipment.

Changes or additions indicated by *italics*, deletions by ~~strikeout~~.

Subd. 19. Fergus Falls State Hospital		
a. Current Expense	756,695	744,122
b. Salaries	2,241,453	2,266,056
Approved Complement—475.08		
c. Repairs and replacements	38,000	38,000
d. Special Equipment	34,310	
Of the amounts appropriated in Subd. 19 d., so much thereof as may be necessary shall be used for the purchase of ward and dormitory furniture, kitchen, and farm equipment.		
Subd. 20. Hastings State Hospital		
a. Current Expense	390,733	386,734
b. Salaries	1,443,572	1,459,051
Approved Complement—276		
c. Repairs and Replacements	27,000	27,000
d. Special Equipment	45,645	
Of the amounts appropriated in Subd. 20 d., so much thereof as may be necessary shall be used for the purchase of ward furniture and furnishings, medical and laundry equipment.		
e. Hastings State Hospital— Childrens Unit		
(1) Current Expense	8,850	8,850
(2) Salaries	167,544	172,503
Approved Complement—30		
Subd. 21. Moose Lake State Hospital		
a. Current Expense	461,794	446,856
Provided that laundry service shall be furnished without charge to the Youth Conservation Commission Forestry Camp at Willow River, Minn.		
b. Salaries	1,462,021	1,478,557
Approved Complement—294.42		
c. Repairs and Replacements	20,000	20,000

Changes or additions indicated by italics, deletions by ~~strikeout~~.

d. Special Equipment	20,410	
Of the amounts appropriated in Subd. 21 d., so much thereof as may be necessary shall be used for the purchase of automotive equipment, furniture, furnishings, dining room, operating room, farm and maintenance equipment.		
Subd. 22. Rochester State Hospital		
a. Current Expense	605,254	594,696
b. Salaries	2,206,835	2,234,302
Approved Complement—452		
c. Repairs and Replacements..	28,000	28,000
d. Special Equipment	35,000	
Of the amounts appropriated in Subd. 22 d., so much thereof as may be necessary shall be used for the purchase of automotive equipment, office, furniture and furnishings, medical, janitorial, and maintenance equipment.		
Subd. 23. St. Peter State Hospital		
a. Current Expense	813,017	812,957
b. Salaries	2,898,629	2,928,381
Approved Complement—612		
c. Repairs and Replacements	38,000	38,000
d. Special Equipment	45,000	10,000
Of the amounts appropriated in Subd. 23 d., so much thereof as may be necessary shall be used for the purchase of furniture and furnishings, office, kitchen, medical equipment, wheel chairs and retubing boilers.		
Subd. 24. Willmar State Hospital		
a. Current Expense	505,749	497,086
b. Salaries	1,675,571	1,693,441
Approved Complement—342		
c. Repairs and Replacements	25,000	25,000

Changes or additions indicated by *italics*, deletions by ~~strikeout~~.

d. Special Equipment	25,000	
Of the amounts appropriated in Subd. 24 d., so much thereof as may be necessary shall be used for the purchase of office, automotive, kitchen, medical, janitorial, and maintenance equipment, and furniture and furnishings.		
Subd. 25. Faribault State School and Hospital		
a. Current Expense	980,344	980,164
Of the amounts provided by item a, \$83,735 for the year ending June 30, 1962, and \$83,721 for the year ending June 30, 1963 is to be paid from the Income Tax-School Fund.		
b. Salaries	3,307,539	3,343,951
Approved Complement—718		
Of the amounts provided by item b, \$273,730 for the year ending June 30, 1962, and \$276,826 for the year ending June 30, 1963 is to be paid from the Income Tax-School Fund.		
c. Repairs and Replacements	47,500	47,500
d. Special Equipment	40,611	
Of the amounts appropriated in Subd. 25 d., so much thereof as may be necessary shall be used for the purchase of automotive equipment, furniture and furnishings for wards, kitchen and farm equipment.		
Subd. 26. Cambridge State School and Hospital and Ramsey County Preventorium Annex		
a. Current Expense	748,011	747,930
Of the amounts provided by item a, \$102,163 for the year ending June 30, 1962, and \$102,152 for the year ending June 30, 1963 is to be paid from the Income Tax-School Fund.		

Changes or additions indicated by *italics*, deletions by ~~strikeout~~.

b. Salaries	2,700,692	2,740,919
-------------------	-----------	-----------

Approved Complement—596

Of the amounts provided by item b, \$341,205 for the year ending June 30, 1962, and \$346,250 for the year ending June 30, 1963 is to be paid from the Income Tax-School Fund.

c. Repairs and Replacements	23,000	23,000
-----------------------------	--------	--------

d. Special Equipment	33,155	
----------------------------	--------	--

Of the amounts appropriated in Subd. 26 d., so much thereof as may be necessary shall be used for the purchase of furniture and furnishings for cottages, kitchen, automotive and maintenance equipment.

None of the money appropriated by Subd. 26 shall be used in farming operations of any kind and the Commissioner of Public Welfare is hereby directed to transfer to other institutions under his direction any farm supplies and equipment, including livestock which can be used at such other institution. Any property not so transferred shall be certified to the Commissioner of Administration by the Commissioner of Public Welfare as surplus property. The Commissioner of Administration shall offer for sale and removal the farm buildings and farmer's residence which he deems not necessary for the program at the Cambridge State School and Hospital.

The Commissioner of Administration is directed to study the land needs of the Cambridge State School and Hospital and make a recommendation to the 1963 Legislature on his findings.

Subd. 27. Owatonna State School

a. Current Expense	135,376	134,761
b. Salaries	740,829	747,326

Changes or additions indicated by *italics*, deletions by ~~strikeout~~.

Approved Complement—1962-151
1963-146

The whole sum provided by items a and b is hereby appropriated from the Income Tax-School Fund.

c. Repairs and Replacements	15,000	15,000
d. Special Equipment	13,331	

Of the amounts appropriated in Subd. 27 d., so much thereof as may be necessary shall be used for the purchase of automotive equipment, furniture and furnishings, kitchen, and maintenance equipment.

Subd. 28. Shakopee Home for Children

a. Current Expense	12,050	12,050
b. Salaries	54,347	55,235

Approved Complement—10.16

c. Repairs and Replacements	750	750
d. Special Equipment	800	

Of the amounts appropriated in Subd. 28 d., so much thereof as may be necessary shall be used for the purchase of dining room tables and chairs.

Subd. 29. Brainerd State School and Hospital

a. Current Expense	384,707	440,695
b. Salaries	840,573	983,543

Approved Complement—

1962-225
1963-230

c. Repairs and Replacements	5,000	5,000
d. Special Equipment	9,412	

Of the amounts appropriated in Subd. 29 d., so much thereof as may be necessary shall be used for the purchase of automotive, office, science and projector equipment.

Subd. 30. Braille and Sight Saving School

Changes or additions indicated by *italics*, deletions by ~~strikeout~~.

a. Current Expense	25,663	24,990
b. Salaries	314,417	317,833

Approved Complement—

1962-67
1963-64

The whole sum provided by items a and b is hereby appropriated from the Income Tax-School Fund.

c. Repairs and Replacements	5,000	5,000
d. Special Equipment	1,950	

Of the amounts appropriated in Subd. 30 d., so much thereof as may be necessary shall be used for the purchase of electric ranges.

Subd. 31. School for the Deaf

a. Current Expense	71,885	72,360
b. Salaries	565,371	572,108

Approved Complement—

1962-132.5
1963-125.5

c. Repairs and Replacements	8,000	8,000
d. Gallaudet Students	800	800

The whole sum provided by items a, b and d is hereby appropriated from the Income Tax-School Fund.

e. Special Equipment	15,000	
----------------------------	--------	--

Of the amount appropriated in Subd. 31 e., so much thereof as may be necessary shall be used for the purchase of office and classroom equipment, furniture and furnishings, kitchen, and maintenance equipment.

f. Summer Program	12,000	12,000
-------------------------	--------	--------

Subd. 32. Gillette State Hospital

a. Current Expense	157,142	157,142
--------------------------	---------	---------

Of the amounts provided by item a, \$109,584 for the year 1961, \$109,584 for the year ending June 30, 1962, and

Changes or additions indicated by *italics*, deletions by ~~strikeout~~.

June 30, 1963, is to be paid from the Income Tax-School Fund.

b. Salaries 1,222,788 1,237,533

Approved Complement—262.16

Of the amounts provided by item b, \$782,328 for the year ending June 30, 1962 and \$791,765 for the year ending June 30, 1963, is to be paid from the Income Tax-School Fund.

c. Repairs and Replacements 10,500 10,500

d. Honorarium for Visiting Staff 30,000 30,000

e. Scientific Apparatus and Equipment 2,000 2,000

f. Special Equipment 15,000

Of the amounts appropriated in Subd. 32 f, so much thereof as may be necessary shall be used for the purchase of general hospital, office, housekeeping, laundry, maintenance and automotive equipment.

Subd. 33. Minnesota State Sanatorium

a. Current Expense 164,987 190,393

b. Salaries 980,893 1,145,472

Approved Complement—
1962-221
1963-253

c. Repairs and Replacements 11,000 11,000

d. Special Equipment 10,975 15,000

Of the amounts appropriated in Subd. 33 d, so much thereof as may be necessary shall be used for the purchase of a truck, maintenance, kitchen, laundry and medical equipment, refrigerators for ward use, and ward furniture.

Subd. 34. Glen Lake State Sanatorium and Oak Terrace Nursing Home

Changes or additions indicated by *italics*, deletions by ~~strikeout~~.

a. Current Expense	143,066	303,251
b. Salaries	605,742	1,278,041
Approved Complement—		
1962-295		
1963-305		
c. Repairs and Replacements	10,000	10,000
d. Special Equipment	10,000	5,000
Sec. 3. TO THE COMMISSIONER OF CORRECTIONS:		
Subd. 1. Administration		
a. Salaries	795,620	804,430
Approved Complement—128.56		
Provided that the Commission of Corrections may leave authorized positions vacant and use the moneys for purchase of tabulating services from the Department of Administration if such is found to be more economical than the filling of the authorized positions.		
b. Supplies and Expense	112,864	111,720
Provided that the parole agents shall reside in the various districts of the state in which they are employed during the period for which this appropriation is effective.		
This appropriation shall not be available to pay for boarding care of any minor child unless such child has been confined in the State Training School for Boys or the Minnesota Home School for Girls and is on parole therefrom.		
Subd. 2. County Probation Services		
a. Salaries, Supplies and Expense	170,168	174,834
Approved Complement—25.25		
b. County Reimbursement	172,131	172,131
Provided, however, that the total amount paid any county in any year shall not exceed 10¢ per each resident of the		

Changes or additions indicated by *italics*, deletions by ~~strikeout~~.

county as determined under Minnesota Statutes 1957, Section 260.09, Subdivision 5, as amended by Laws 1959, Chapter 698, nor shall such total amount exceed 50 percent of the total cost of any county in providing probation and parole services to wards of the Youth Conservation Commission.

Subd. 3. Research 10,000

Provided that the balance shall not cancel on June 30, 1962, but be available for the second year.

Subd. 4. Working Capital Fund for Hospital Care 12,000

The amount appropriated by this item shall be used to cover the expense of hospital care for inmates and persons furnished in hospitals not under supervision of the Commissioner of Corrections. The balance shall not cancel on June 30, 1962, but be available in the following year. All reimbursements received for such medical services shall be credited to this fund and become a part thereof.

Subd. 5. Personnel Training 17,980

Provided that the balance shall not cancel on June 30, 1962, but be available for the second year.

Subd. 6. Minnesota State Prison

a. Current Expense 538,149 532,899

b. Salaries 1,336,534 1,348,035

Approved Complement—216.25

c. Repairs and Replacements 28,000 28,000

d. Special Equipment 28,000

Of the amounts appropriated in Subd. 6 d., so much thereof as may be necessary shall be used for the purchase of farm, medical, automotive, fire fighting

Changes or additions indicated by *italics*, deletions by ~~strikeout~~.

	and office equipment, educational and armory supplies, and furniture.		
	e. Guard Uniforms	4,500	4,500
Subd. 7.	Reformatory for Men		
	a. Current Expense	418,988	418,988
	b. Salaries	1,260,397	1,278,470
	Approved Complement—		
	202.67		
	c. Repairs and Replacements	34,000	34,000
	d. Special Equipment	25,000	
	Of the amounts appropriated in Subd. 7 d, so much thereof as may be necessary shall be used for the purchase of automotive, office, kitchen, farm, educational, and recreational equipment.		
	e. Guard Uniforms	4,500	4,500
	f. Penal Camp Expense	2,760	2,760
	g. Penal Camp Salaries	53,757	55,035
	Approved Complement—10		
Subd. 8.	Reformatory for Women		
	a. Current Expense	28,970	28,970
	b. Salaries	138,600	140,744
	Approved Complement—25.33		
	c. Repairs and Replacements	3,500	3,500
	d. Special Equipment	5,730	
	Of the amounts appropriated in Subd. 8 d, so much thereof as may be necessary shall be used for the purchase of automotive equipment, refrigerators, and furniture.		
Subd. 9.	State Training School for Boys		
	a. Current Expense	178,000	181,000
	b. Salaries	714,669	723,936
	Approved Complement—127		
	c. Repairs and Replacements	12,500	12,500

Changes or additions indicated by *italics*, deletions by ~~strikeout~~.

The amounts appropriated by Subd. 9 a, 9 b, and 9 c, are to be paid from the Income Tax-School Fund.

d. Special Equipment 15,000

Of the amounts provided in Subd. 9 d., so much thereof as may be necessary shall be used for the purchase of bedding, motor vehicles, dormitory, school, cottage and reception room furniture and vocational and farm equipment.

Subd. 10. Home School for Girls

a. Current Expense 114,657 114,622

b. Salaries 432,077 438,648

Approved Complement—89.5

c. Repairs and Replacements 5,500 5,500

The amounts appropriated by Subd. 10 a, 10 b, and 10 c are to be paid from the Income Tax-School Fund.

d. Special Equipment 8,000 4,000

Of the amounts appropriated by item d, so much thereof as may be necessary shall be used for the purchase of automotive equipment, furniture and furnishings, school, kitchen, vocational and grounds and garden equipment.

Subd. 11. Youth Conservation Commission—Forestry Camp No. 1

117,290 116,704

Approved Complement—13

For operation of a Youth Conservation Commission Camp at General Andrews Nursery, Willow River, Minnesota and related activities.

Subd. 12. Youth Conservation Commission—Work Camp No. 2

121,779 121,110

Approved Complement—13

For operation of a Youth Conservation Commission Camp at

Changes or additions indicated by *italics*, deletions by ~~strikeout~~.

Thistledew Lake, Minnesota and related activities.

Subd. 13. Youth Conservation Commission—Work Camp No. 3 110,197 112,395

Approved Complement—13

For the operation of the St. Croix Youth Conservation Commission Camp and related activities.

Of the amounts appropriated for Subd. 13, \$13,436 for the year ending June 30, 1962 and \$13,964 for the year ending June 30, 1963 shall be appropriated from the Income Tax-School Fund.

Subd. 14. Youth Conservation Commission—Work Camp No. 4 112,478 115,280

Approved Complement—13

For operation of a Youth Conservation Commission Camp at Rochester, Minnesota and related activities.

Sec. 4. CONTINGENT FOR STATE INSTITUTIONS 250,000

The amount appropriated by this item or so much thereof as may be necessary, is to be used for emergency purposes, and for the purchase of food, clothing, drugs, and fuel for any of the institutions or work camps for which an appropriation is herein made. The expenditure of said contingent shall be under the control of the Legislative Advisory Committee and no expenditure shall be made therefrom without the direction of the governor after consultation with the Legislative Advisory Committee, as provided by Minnesota Statutes 356.17. The balance on June 30, 1962 shall not cancel into the general revenue fund but shall be available for the following year.

1961

Sec. 5. Employees' compensation 149,139.14

Changes or additions indicated by italics, deletions by ~~strikeout~~.

To be transferred by the State Auditor to the Department of Labor and Industry, Compensation Revolving Fund, in payment of obligations incurred by the following state agencies and institutions in the amounts as indicated:

Department of Public Welfare-Administration	9.68
Anoka State Hospital	42,992.21
Braille & Sight Saving School	306.05
School for the Deaf	1,326.76
Cambridge State School and Hospital	33,197.18
Fergus Falls State Hospital	31,043.16
Gillette State Hospital	666.59
Hastings State Hospital	18,724.36
Moose Lake State Hospital	4,080.36
Owatonna State School	2,741.18
Sandstone State Hospital	1,460.79
Willmar State Hospital	7,792.20
Minnesota State Sanatorium	4,798.62

Of the amount provided by section 5, the sum of \$6,573.79 (Braille and Sight Saving School, School for the Deaf, Cambridge State School and Hospital, Gillette State Hospital, and Owatonna State School) is to be paid from the income tax school fund.

1961

Sec. 6. Unemployment compensation 64,128.39

To unemployment compensation fund in reimbursement of unemployment compensation benefits paid for former employees of the following:

Department of Public Welfare-Administration	648.50
Anoka State Hospital	7,372.67
Braille and Sight Saving School	763.00
School for the Deaf	1,590.48
Cambridge State School and Hospital	4,775.77
Faribault State School and Hospital	2,302.48
Fergus Falls State Hospital	2,157.30
Gillette State Hospital	1,628.89
Hastings State Hospital	3,298.35
Moose Lake State Hospital	1,991.29
Rochester State Hospital	775.65
St. Peter State Hospital	1,149.13
Owatonna State School	1,449.26
State Sanatorium	2,039.01
Willmar State Hospital	3,215.10
Sandstone State Hospital	28,886.49
Shakopee Home for Children	85.02

Changes or additions indicated by *italics*, deletions by ~~strikeout~~.

Of the amount provided for in Sec. 6, the sum of \$5,720.21 (Braille and Sight Saving School, School for the Deaf, Cambridge State School and Hospital, Faribault State School and Hospital, Gillette State Hospital and Owatonna State School) is to be paid from the income tax school fund.

Sec. 7. Certain funds used for certain purposes. Upon the approval of the Commissioner of Public Welfare or the Commission of Corrections as to the institutions under their respective control, the superintendent of any such institution for which an appropriation is made herein may pay out of the current expense appropriation of said institution to any employee thereof, the amount of any property damage sustained by such employee, not in excess of \$25 by reason, or as a result of action of any patient or inmate of such institution.

Except at the State Prison and State Reformatory, profits accrued by reason of operation of diversified labor accounts, may be used at the direction of the superintendent of the institution, for the purchase of occupational therapy equipment.

Sec. 8. [246.025] Hospital administrator. Notwithstanding any provision of law to the contrary, the Commissioner of Welfare may appoint, as the chief executive officer of any state hospital, a hospital administrator. Such hospital administrator shall be a graduate of an accredited college giving a course leading to a degree in hospital administration and the Commissioner of Welfare, by rule or regulation, shall establish such colleges which in his opinion give an accredited course in hospital administration. The provisions of this section shall not apply to any chief executive officer now appointed to that position who on the effective date of this section is neither a physician and surgeon nor a graduate of a college giving a degree in hospital administration. In addition to a chief executive officer, the Commissioner of Welfare may appoint a licensed doctor of medicine as chief of the medical staff and he shall be in charge of all medical care, treatment, rehabilitation and research.

Sec. 9. Approved complement. Except as otherwise provided herein, whenever an appropriation to any institution or agency for salaries discloses an approved complement, that institution or agency is limited in the employment of the number of full time equivalent persons indicated by such approved complement. Such approved complement,

Changes or additions indicated by *italics*, deletions by ~~strikeout~~.

however, does not include employees engaged in repair or construction projects who may be employed only with the advance approval of the Commissioner of Administration.

Additional employees over the number of the approved complement may be employed on the basis of public necessity or emergency with the written approval of the governor, but the governor shall not approve such additional personnel until he has consulted with the Legislative Advisory Committee created by Laws 1943, Chapter 594, and such committee has made its recommendation upon the matter. Such recommendation shall be advisory only. Failure or refusal of the committee to make a recommendation promptly shall be deemed a negative recommendation. The provisions hereof shall extend to any other agency to which the present authority of the Legislative Advisory Committee may be transferred, but shall be deemed to be repealed in case such authority shall be abolished.

Sec. 10. Certain employees. Provided that none of the moneys appropriated by this act or any other law shall be used to employ maids or personnel with similar domestic duties to work in the residences of any officer or employee of any institution, department or agency of the state. But this provision shall not apply to such persons who pay a fixed monthly fee for board and room and laundry and who obtain their meals from state operated dining rooms.

Sec. 11. Merit increases. Notwithstanding any provision of Minnesota Statutes 1957, Chapter 43, as amended, to the contrary, moneys appropriated by this act or any other appropriation law may be expended for merit increases and for longevity increases only in accordance with the following:

Merit increases and longevity increases shall not be granted during the fiscal year ending June 30, 1962, except that one merit or longevity increase may be granted to those persons who do not receive a pay increase by reason of the adoption of the civil service pay plan filed with the commissioner of administration to become effective on July 1, 1961.

These merit or longevity increases may be financed solely from departmental savings.

One merit increase for each eligible position below the maximum of its range, or one longevity increase above the

Changes or additions indicated by *italics*, deletions by ~~strikeout~~.

maximum may be granted for each eligible position during the fiscal year ending June 30, 1963.

The moneys for the payment of the merit or longevity increases authorized shall be financed as follows:

In departments having from 1 to 20 employees, sufficient moneys are provided by this act for the payment of the authorized merit and longevity increases.

In departments having from 21 to 50 employees, 75 percent of the moneys required have been provided in this act for the payment of authorized merit and longevity increases; the remaining 25 percent may be financed from departmental savings.

In departments having from 51 to 100 employees, 50 percent of the moneys required have been provided in this act for the payment of authorized merit and longevity increases; the remaining 50 percent may be financed from departmental savings.

In departments having from 101 and over employees, 40 percent of the moneys required have been provided in this act for the payment of authorized merit and longevity increases; the remaining 60 percent may be financed from departmental savings.

When a position at the maximum is vacated, an additional amount equal to one merit increase is available therefor to be expended only at the times prescribed in the previous paragraphs.

Merit increases granted pursuant to this section shall be on the basis of established standards, but in no event to exceed one merit increase per eligible employee per fiscal year.

None of the moneys appropriated by this act or any other law shall be expended during the fiscal year beginning July 1, 1962, for economic salary adjustments notwithstanding the provisions of law relating thereto to the contrary.

Sec. 12. None of the moneys appropriated by this act or any other appropriation law shall be expended in paying state officers or employees in the unclassified service for unused portions of annual leave allowances provided for by M. S. 1957, Section 351.12 for any greater period of time than is permitted state officers or employees in the classified service.

Changes or additions indicated by *italics*, deletions by ~~strikeout~~.

Sec. 13. Receipts. All funds, sums of moneys, or other resources provided or to be received, including all receipts, collections, legislative allocations, transfers and other income and receipts properly belong to and to be used for financing activities, programs and other projects other than the institutions now or hereafter under the supervision and jurisdiction of the Commissioner of Public Welfare not otherwise specifically designated as income or credits to other state departments or funds by law, shall be credited to and become a part of the appropriations provided for in Section 2, Subdivisions 1, 6, 7, 8, 9, 10, 12, 13, 14, 15 and 16.

Excepting the income from swamp land trust fund, all receipts of said institutions and activities carried on under the direction of said commissioners of public welfare and corrections shall be deposited in and for the benefit of the general revenue fund, provided, however, that this shall not apply to revolving funds now established in institutions under the control of said commissioners; and provided that this shall not apply to maintenance charges as prescribed in Section 14 and provided further that this shall not apply to money received in payment for services of inmate labor employed in the industries carried on in the State Reformatory for Men, State Reformatory for Women, and State Prison, which receipts shall be credited to the current expense fund of said institutions.

There is hereby cancelled into the general revenue fund all money in the possession of the commissioner of public welfare found upon or procured from the sale of personal property of former members of the camp for Homeless Men operated under the authority of said department.

Sec. 14. Maintenance receipts. All receipts from maintenance charges established by the Departments of Public Welfare and Corrections at the institutions and work camps under their control and supervision shall be deposited in the state treasury and made available to supplement the appropriations made by this act for current expenses at each institution and work camp having such receipts. Such receipts are hereby reappropriated to the Departments of Public Welfare and Corrections for current expenses at each such institution and work camp under their respective control.

Sec. 15. Commissary and quarter allowance. Except for youth camp superintendents, no commissary privileges,

Changes or additions indicated by *italics*, deletions by ~~strikeout~~.

including food, laundry service, and household supplies, shall be furnished to any persons in staff residences or apartments from appropriations made by this act. Youth camp superintendents may be furnished foods, quarters, and household supplies without cost.

For physicians living on the grounds the commissioners of welfare and corrections are authorized to eliminate the maintenance deduction heretofore made, provide such quarters gratis, and also grant an allowance of not to exceed \$25 per month.

Quarters and a stipend allowance of not to exceed \$75.00 per month may be authorized by the commissioner of welfare for medical students and physician fellows.

The commissioners of welfare and corrections are authorized to pay out of salary appropriations for the various institutions, to physicians employed in institutions, an allowance if not to exceed \$150 per month, in lieu of free quarters on the grounds, providing such quarters are not available.

Notwithstanding any provision in Minnesota Statutes 1957, Section 246.02, as amended, to the contrary, maintenance including food, laundry service, and household supplies shall not be furnished to any officer including, but not limited to, the chief executive officers of the State Prison and Reformatories.

Sec. 16. Moneys appropriated under this act for the purchase of provisions within the item "Current Expense" shall be used solely for that purpose. The amounts appropriated for provisions are shown on the worksheets of the conferees of the Senate and House of Representatives, a true copy of which is on file in the office of the Secretary of the Senate and the Chief Clerk of the House. Any money so provided and not used for purchase of provisions shall be cancelled into the fund from which appropriated.

Sec. 17. **Federal grants.** Grants in aid now or hereafter received from the federal government for any welfare, assistance or relief program or for administration under the jurisdiction of the department of public welfare shall, in the first instance, be credited to a federal grant fund and shall be transferred therefrom to the credit of the commissioner of public welfare in the account established by Section 1 of this act upon certification of the commissioner of public welfare that the amounts so requested to be transferred

Changes or additions indicated by *italics*, deletions by ~~strikeout~~.

have been earned or are required for the purposes and program intended. Moneys received by such federal grant fund need not be budgeted as such, provided transfers from such fund are budgeted for allotment purposes in the appropriate appropriations.

The Department of Public Welfare is authorized and directed to negotiate with the federal government, or any agency, bureau or department thereof, for the purpose of securing or obtaining any grants or aid in the construction of buildings, or the making of the improvements authorized by this act. Any grants or aid thus secured or received are hereby appropriated to said Department of Public Welfare and made available for the uses and purposes for which it was received but shall be used to reduce the appropriations hereinbefore provided unless specifically directed otherwise by the Legislative Advisory Committee.

Sec. 18. The budgetary control as provided in Laws 1939, Chapter 431, shall extend to and apply to all appropriations herein made available for the fiscal years ending June 30, 1961, June 30, 1962, and June 30, 1963.

All state departments, bureaus, agencies or divisions, operating under Laws 1939, Chapter 431, financed by funds appropriated or receipts or fees of any nature whatsoever, when making requests or preparing budgets to be submitted to the federal government in support of or in request of funds, equipment, materials, or services, from the federal government shall, upon completion of such request or budget, first submit it to the Commissioner of Administration. The Commissioner of Administration shall have authority to approve, disapprove, modify, or amend any such request or budget before submitting it to the proper federal authority. When such federal authority has approved such request or budget, the state agency shall resubmit it to the Commissioner of Administration for recording before any allotment or encumbrance of the federal funds can be made.

Sec. 19. The unobligated balances on hand as of June 30, 1961, June 30, 1962, and June 30, 1963, in the several appropriations and accounts for which an appropriation is herein made out of the general revenue fund, or has heretofore been made, are hereby cancelled into the general revenue fund as of June 30, 1961, June 30, 1962, and June 30, 1963, and the unobligated balances on hand as of June 30, 1961, June 30, 1962, and June 30, 1963, appropriated out of any

Changes or additions indicated by *italics*, deletions by ~~strikeout~~.

other funds, shall be cancelled into the fund from which they are appropriated as of June 30, 1961, June 30, 1962, and June 30, 1963.

The provisions of this section shall not apply to contributions, or reimbursements received from the federal government by the state or boxing tax receipts transferred to the Department of Public Welfare by the authority of Chapter 245, Laws of 1945, and all such federal aid, contributions or reimbursements, and boxing tax receipts are hereby re-appropriated for the purpose of supplementing the appropriation herein provided and shall be added to the maximums of the several accounts herein designated.

Sec. 20. Transfer of funds. (a) The Commissioner of Public Welfare by direction of the governor after consulting with the Legislative Advisory Committee, may transfer unobligated appropriation balances between the various accounts appropriated under Section 2, Subdivisions 6, 7, 8, 9, 10, 12, 13, 14, 15, and 16.

(b) Authority is hereby granted to the Commissioner of Public Welfare to transfer appropriations not to exceed \$200,000 in any one fiscal year from one mental hospital or institution for the mentally deficient to any other mental hospital or institution for the mentally deficient in the best interests of the mental health program. Such transfer shall be made with the written approval of the governor after consulting with the Legislative Advisory Committee.

(c) Authority is hereby granted to the Commissioner of Corrections to transfer appropriations not to exceed \$200,000, in any one fiscal year from one institution under his control to any other institution under his control in the best interest of the security and rehabilitation programs. Such transfer shall be made with the written approval of the governor after consulting with the Legislative Advisory Committee.

(d) When a children's building is placed in operation at the Glen Lake State Sanatorium, or when the children's center at Lino Lakes is placed in operation, the Commissioner of Welfare may direct the auditor to consolidate the appropriations made by Section 2, Subdivision 7, Item a and Section 2, Subdivision 20, Item e(1), into one account and Section 2, Subdivision 7, Item b and Section 2, Subdivision 20, Item e(2) into one account and the moneys as therein

Changes or additions indicated by *italics*, deletions by ~~strikeout~~.

consolidated are reappropriated for the operation of the facilities enumerated herein.

Sec. 21. The Commissioner of Public Welfare is authorized to enter into contracts with the Department of Health, Education, Welfare and the Department of Interior, Bureau of Indian Affairs, for the purpose of receiving federal grants for the welfare and relief of Minnesota Indians. Such contract and the plan of distribution of such funds shall be subject to approval of the Minnesota Public Relief Advisory Committee as authorized in Section 2, Subdivision 16 of this act.

Sec. 22. None of the moneys appropriated by this act or any other law shall be expended in making any refund where the amount thereof is \$1.00 or less.

Sec. 23. Notwithstanding the provisions of any other law to the contrary, the salaries of the State Officers enumerated in this section and payable from the appropriations made by this act shall be fixed by the appointing authority but shall not exceed the following:

Commissioner of Public Welfare	\$16,000
Commissioner of Corrections	16,000
Superintendent, State Reformatory for Men	13,000
Warden, Minnesota State Prison	13,000
Superintendent, State Training School for Boys	11,000
Superintendent, Owatonna State School	11,000
Superintendent, Braille and Sight Saving School	11,000
Superintendent, School for the Deaf	11,000
Superintendent, Gillette State Hospital	11,000
Superintendent, State Reformatory for Women	10,000
Superintendent, Minnesota Home School for Girls	10,500
Superintendent, Anoka State Hospital	15,000
Superintendent, Brainerd State School and Hos- pital	15,000
Superintendent, Cambridge State School and Hospital	15,000
Superintendent, Faribault State School and Hos- pital	15,000
Superintendent, Fergus Falls State Hospital	15,000
Superintendent, Hastings State Hospital	15,000
Superintendent, Moose Lake State Hospital	15,000
Superintendent, Rochester State Hospital	15,000
Superintendent, St. Peter State Hospital	15,000

Changes or additions indicated by *italics*, deletions by ~~strikeout~~.

Superintendent, Minnesota State Sanatorium or Ah Gwah Ching Nursing Home	15,000
Superintendent, Willmar State Hospital	15,000
Superintendent, Glen Lake State Sanatorium and Oak Terrace Nursing Home	15,000

The state officers above enumerated shall be subject to all the provisions of this act and to the provisions of M. S. 1957, Sec. 246.02, as amended, insofar as the provisions of such section are applicable and not inconsistent with this act.

Approved June 7, 1961.

EXTRA SESSION

CHAPTER 75—S. F. No. 12

[Not Coded]

An act relating to the operations of the department of highways and appropriating moneys out of the trunk highway fund therefor.

Be it enacted by the Legislature of the State of Minnesota:

Section 1. State highway department; appropriation. The sums hereinafter set forth and designated "APPROPRIATIONS", or so much thereof as may be necessary, are hereby appropriated out of the trunk highway fund in the state treasury to the department of highways for the purposes specified in the following sections of the act, to be available for the fiscal year indicated for each purpose. The figures "1962" and "1963" wherever used herein mean the appropriations listed thereunder to be available for the year ending June 30, 1962, and June 30, 1963, respectively. The appropriations herein are for those purposes required by Laws 1959, Chapter 500, Article II, Section 50, Subdivision 2.

APPROPRIATIONS	
Available for the Year	
Ending June 30	
1962	1963

Sec. 2. ADMINISTRATION OF THE DEPARTMENT OF HIGHWAYS

Subd. 1. Salaries	1,563,778	1,552,153
Approved complement—1962-264		
1963-259		

Changes or additions indicated by *italics*, deletions by ~~strikeout~~.